
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
CITY OF BAY CITY 
Tuesday, July 13, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | 1901 5th Street 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Mayor: Robert K Nelson  
Mayor Pro Tem: Jason W. Childers 
Council Members: Bradley Westmoreland, Becca Sitz, Floyce Brown, Jim Folse 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity, 
sustainability, and health of the community. 

AGENDA 

 

 THE FOLLOWING ITEM WILL BE ADDRESSED AT THIS OR ANY OTHER 
MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL UPON THE REQUEST OF THE MAYOR, ANY 
MEMBER(S) OF COUNCIL AND/OR THE CITY ATTORNEY: 

 

  ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE MAYOR THAT COUNCIL WILL RETIRE INTO CLOSED SESSION FOR 
CONSULTATION WITH CITY ATTORNEY ON MATTERS IN WHICH THE DUTY OF THE ATTORNEY 
TO THE CITY COUNCIL UNDER THE TEXAS DISCIPLINARY RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 
OF THE STATE BAR OF TEXAS CLEARLY CONFLICTS WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT (TITLE 5, 
CHAPTER 551, SECTION 551.071(2) OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE). 

  

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE 
Texas State Flag Pledge: "Honor The Texas Flag; I Pledge Allegiance To Thee, Texas, One 
State Under God, One And Indivisible.”  

Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

MISSION STATEMENT 
The City of Bay City is a community that fosters future economic growth, strives to deliver 
superior municipal services, invests in quality of life initiatives and is the gateway to the great 
outdoors. We encourage access to our unique historical and eco-cultural resources while 
maintaining our small-town Texas charm. 

Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 

Page 1



Agenda City Council Regular Meeting July 13, 2021 
 

 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

1. Meeting minutes of Council Capital Planning Workshop held on June 22, 2021 

2. Accounts Payable, Direct Payables, & Utility Refunds for January, February, 
March, April, May, & June 2021. 

3. TIRZ #1 Expenditures as recommended by the TIRZ Board 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

4. Award ~ Acknowledging the actions of Randy Frontz, Marlon Swist, Patrick 
Cervantes, and Jose Deleon. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager 

5. Budget ~ Discuss, Consider, and/or Approve Budget Amendments for the Bay 
City Community Development Corporation (BCCDC) as of June 30, 2021. Jessica 
Russell, BCCDC Executive Director 

6. Budget~ Discuss, Consider, and/or Approve an Ordinance Adopting Budget 
Amendments for the Quarter Ending June 30, 2021. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

7. Services ~ Discuss, Consider, and/or Approve Harrison, Waldrop, and Uherek 
L.L.P. to provide Audit Services for the City of Bay City for the Year Ending 
September 30, 2021. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

8. Bid Award ~ Discuss, consider, and/or award the construction bid for the AMI 
Water Meter Replacement Project under the Texas Water Development Board 
Funding for the Drinking Water SRF Projects to Accurate Utility Supply and 
authorize the Mayor and/or City Manager to execute a contract approved to form 
by the City Attorney between the City of Bay City, Texas and Accurate Utility 
Supply. Louis Rodriguez, Assistant Public Works Director 

9. Contract ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve Work Order No. 4 to the Standard 
Contract Agreement between the City of Bay City, Texas and Garver, LLC for 
Professional Engineering Services for the Bay City Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Improvements Project under the Texas Water Development Board Funding 
Clean Water SRF Projects. Barry Calhoun, Public Works Director 

10. Contract ~ Discuss and receive Council direction regarding Nile Valley bid 
specification discrepancies. Barry Calhoun, Public Works Director 

CLOSED / EXECUTIVE SESSION 

11. Legal ~ Executive Session pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government 
code (Consultation with Counsel on legal matters). 

Page 2



Agenda City Council Regular Meeting July 13, 2021 
 

 
OPEN SESSION 
Discuss, consider and/or take action on item(s) listed in Executive/Closed Session, (if any). 

ITEMS / COMMENTS & MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

ADJOURNMENT  

AGENDA NOTICES: 

Action by Council Authorized: The City Council may vote and/or act upon any item within this 
Agenda. The Council reserves the right to retire into executive session concerning any of the 
items listed on this Agenda, pursuant to and in accordance with Texas Government Code 
Section 551.071, to seek the advice of its attorney about pending or contemplated litigation, 
settlement offer or on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under 
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas conflict with the 
Open Meetings Act and may invoke this right where the City Attorney, the Mayor or a majority 
of the Governing Body deems an executive session is necessary to allow privileged consultation 
between the City Attorney and the governing body, if considered necessary and legally justified 
under the Open Meetings Act. The City Attorney may appear in person, or appear in executive 
session by conference call in accordance with applicable state law. 

Attendance By Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members of other 
city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the meeting in numbers that may 
constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or committees. Notice is hereby 
given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a meeting of the other 
boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance. The 
members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions on the 
same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that 
board, commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

Executive Sessions Authorized: This agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s 
legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any Executive Session portion of the agenda 
constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by legal counsel for 
the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed 
therein may be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering available 
opinions of a court of record and opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney. 
This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent to meet all elements necessary to 
satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by all 
participants in reliance on this opinion. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Regular Called Council Meeting was posted on the 
front window of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Friday, July 9, 2021 before 
6:00 p.m. Any questions concerning the above items, please contact Mayor Robert K. Nelson 
at (979) 245-2137. 

Page 3



 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  JUNE 22, 2021 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

City Council Workshop - Capital Planning 3:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

  

 

  

  Mayor   

  Robert K. Nelson   

Councilman  Councilman  Councilwoman 

Jim Folse  Brent P. Marceaux  Becca Sitz 

Mayor Pro Tem    Councilwoman 

Jason W. Childers    Floyce Brown 

 

Bay City is committed to developing and enhancing the long-term prosperity,  
sustainability, and health of the community. 

  

Page 4

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Workshop - Capital Planning  June 22, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER 

Meeting was called to order at 3:07 by Mayor Robert K. Nelson 

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

PRESENT 
Mayor Robert K. Nelson 
Mayor Pro Tem Jason W. Childers 
Councilman Jim Folse 
Councilwoman Becca Sitz 
 
ABSENT 
Councilwoman Floyce Brown 
Councilman Brent P. Marceaux 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

REGULAR ITEMS  FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND / OR APPROVAL 

1. Budget ~ Discuss, Consider, and/or take action on the Ten (10) Year Capital 
Planning ranking process. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

Scotty Jones, Finance Director, and Council reviewed capital improvements proposed 
over the next ten years by department and their priorities.  

Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, reviewed items proposed to procure with ARP funds 
and Hotel/Motel Tax funds. 

Scotty Jones reviewed the City's outstanding dept. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn made by Councilwoman Sitz, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Childers. Voting 
Yea: Mayor Nelson, Mayor Pro Tem Childers, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Brown, 
Councilwoman Sitz. Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

   

ROBERT K. NELSON, MAYOR 

CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

JEANNA THOMPSON 

CITY SECRETARY 

Page 5

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Workshop - Capital Planning  June 22, 2021 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

 

Page 6

ITEM #1.



Page 7

ITEM #2.



Page 8

ITEM #2.



Page 9

ITEM #3.



BUDGET~ DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR 

THE BAY CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (BCCDC) AS OF 

JUNE 30, 2021. 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Bay City Community Development Corporation is a component unit of 

the City. In accordance with the CDC’s articles of incorporation, the City Council approves the 

annual budget. City Council also approves amendments for the BCCDC. 

The BCCDC Board approves amendments prior to submitting to City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Amending the budget provides a revised parameter for the 

budget.  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council approve the budget amendments as 

presented. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendments as approved by Board on June 28, 2021 

Page 10

ITEM #5.



Page 11

ITEM #5.



BUDGET~ DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDING JUNE 30, 2021.  

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  The legal level of budgetary control for the City of Bay City lies at the 

departmental level. Any revisions that alter the amount of total expenditures/expenses of the 

department must be approved by City Council. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Amending the budget provides a revised parameter for the 

budget.  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council approve the budget amendments as 

presented. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance and Budget Amendments  

Page 12

ITEM #6.



Page 13

ITEM #6.



Page 14

ITEM #6.



Page 15

ITEM #6.



Page 16

ITEM #6.



Page 17

ITEM #6.



    ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS, ADOPTING A 

"BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 TO THE "ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 

BAY CITY, TEXAS, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021"; PROVIDING FOR 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION AND/OR TRANSFER OF CERTAIN 

FUNDS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT. 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 1651, the City of Bay City, Texas, adopted its 

"Annual Budget" for Fiscal Year 2021;  

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined the revenues and/or reserves are available 

for supplement appropriation and/or transfer of certain funds interdepartmentally is economically 

feasible and in the best interest of prudent budgeting; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend said Original General Budget to reflect 

such supplemental appropriation and/or transfer in the fiscal year 2021; now, therefore,  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BAY CITY, 

STATE OF TEXAS:  

Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby 

to be true and correct.  

Section 2. The "Annual Budget" of the City of Bay City, Texas, for the Fiscal Year 

2021, is hereby amended as shown on "Budget Amendment #3" to the Original Budget of the 

City of Bay City, Texas, for the Fiscal Year 2021, attached hereto. These amendments are for 

municipal purposes. Said Budget Amendment shall be attached to and made a part of such 

Annual Budget by the City Secretary and shall be filed as required by state law, a true ad correct 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance 

or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason be adjudged 

invalid or held constitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or 

invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared 

to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Bay City, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any 

such part thus declared to be invalid or constitutional, whether there be one or more parts.  

 

 

Page 18

ITEM #6.



PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading this 13th day of July 2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS  

 

 

 

 

 

      

      

                                                            

_______________________________ 

       Robert K. Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED as to FORM:  

 

 

_____________________________ 

Anne Marie Odefey, City Attorney 

Page 19

ITEM #6.



 

Council Member:  Voted Aye  Voted No  Absent 

 

Bradley Westmoreland _________  _________  ________ 

 

Jim Folse   _________  _________  ________ 

   

Floyce Brown   _________  _________  ________ 

 

Becca Sitz   _________  _________  ________ 

 

Jason Childers   _________  _________  ________ 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

 

 

      

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Robert K. Nelson, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Jeanna Thompson, City Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE: 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Anne Marie Odefey, City Attorney 
 

Page 20

ITEM #6.



DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE HARRISON, WALDROP, AND UHEREK, 

L.L.P. TO PROVIDE AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF BAY CITY FOR THE 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 AUDIT SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND:  

An engagement letter is signed between the City and the Audit firm each year prior to the close of 

the fiscal year to be audited. This is a standard document that details the responsibility of 

management, the audit objectives, and the associated fees.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

The audit fee could change from year to year. The fee presented of $36,000 is the same as prior 

year audit period. An additional $4,000 will be incurred for a Single Audit if applicable. 

IMPACT ON COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY: 

It provides financial information to the public and other interested 3rd parties. Audits portray a 

City’s financial strength or weakness and determine whether a City’s financial statements are free 

of any material misstatements to the reader. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends City Council approve the engagement letter with Harrison, Waldrop, and 

Uherek (HWU). HWU has strong municipal audit experience and has the ability to rotate audit 

staff.  

ATTACHMENTS: Audit Engagement Letter 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

ITEM #7.



Page 22

ITEM #7.



Page 23

ITEM #7.



Page 24

ITEM #7.



Page 25

ITEM #7.



Page 26

ITEM #7.



Page 27

ITEM #7.



Page 28

ITEM #7.



Page 29

ITEM #7.



 

CITY OF BAY CITY  
1901 FIFTH STREET 

AGENDA ITEM SUBMISSION FORM 
BAY CITY, TEXAS 77414 
(979) 245-2137  
FAX: (979) 323-1626  

Any item(s) to be considered for action by the City Council, must be included on this form, and 
be submitted along with any supporting documentation.  Completed Agenda Item Submission 
forms must be submitted to the City Secretary’s Office no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday of 
the week prior to the Regular Council meeting. 

Requestor Name:  Rodriguez, Louis Date Submitted: 07/07/2021 
 Last, First    MM/DD/YYYY 

Requestor Type:  City Staff Meeting Date: 07/13/2021 
 Citizen/City Staff/Council Member  MM/DD/YYYY 

Position Title  Assistant Director of Public Works – Utilities & Operations 
 For City Staff Only  

Agenda Location: Discussion Item 
 (e.g.: Consent Agenda/ Discussion Item/ Public Hearing/ Executive Session/ Presentation) 

Agenda Content: 

DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION BID FOR THE AMI WATER METER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT UNDER THE TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD FUNDING FOR THE 
DRINKING WATER SRF PROECTS TO ACCURATE UTILITY SUPPLY AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR 
AND/OR CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT APPROVED TO FORM BY THE CITY ATTORNEY 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BAY CITY AND ACCURATE UTILITY SUPPLY. 

Executive Summary of Item: 

The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, authorized by the Safe Drinking Water Act, provides low-cost financial 
assistance for planning, acquisition, design, and construction of water infrastructure.  Eligible applicants for the 
DWSRF include publicly and privately-owned community water systems, including nonprofit water supply 
corporations and nonprofit, non-community public water systems. 
 
The City of Bay City was awarded $20,300,00 in funding from the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to 
make critical improvements to the City's water systems. These improvements will include upgrades to our existing 
water plants, water distribution system, water meters, and new water plants. 
 
This agenda item is to award the construction bid for the AMI Water Meter Replacement Project to the best value 
proposer. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation to award this bid to Accurate Utility Supply. 
 
 

 

 

Page 30

ITEM #8.



Garver Project 

No. 21W09105 Bay City Meter Replacement Bid Tabulation Date: June 10, 2021

Bidders Name  Base Bid Total  Extra Unit Price Items 

Total Monthly 

Subscription 

Charges

Calendar Days 

to substantial 

completion Bid Bond 

RTS Water Solution 2,431,842.76$  472,215.60$                      5,109.75$       182 Provided

Aqua Metric Sales Company 2,496,783.65$  270,275.20$                      114,638.53$   730 Provided

Agua Works Pipe & Supply, LLC 2,715,170.82$  1,440,000.00$                  2,788.90$       335 Provided

Accurate Utilities Supplies 3,361,835.00$  1,367,650.00$                  6,063.57$       360 Provided

Page 31

ITEM #8.



Garver Project No. 

21W09105 Bay City Meter Replacement Bid Scoring Date: June 10, 2021

Rank Bidders Name Water Meter  Base Bid Total 

 Extra Unit Price 

Items  Total Cost Cost Score  

Total Monthly 

Subscription 

Charges

Calendar Days to 

Substantial 

Completion

 Schedule                           

(0-10)

Total AMI 

Capabilities                         

(0-25)

Tech Support                        

(0-20)

Qualifications 

of Offeror                   

(0-20) Total

Aqua Metric Sales Company Sensus/ Xylem/ Ipearl 2,496,783.65$           270,275.20$           2,767,058.85$                  24.33 114,638.53$       730 0 12.5 15 18 69.83

Envocore RTS Water Solution Unspecified 2,431,842.76$           472,215.60$           2,904,058.36$                  25.00 5,109.75$            182 5 5 10 5 50.00

Agua Works Pipe & Supply, LLC Kamstrup 2,715,170.82$           1,440,000.00$       4,155,170.82$                  22.09 2,788.90$            335 10 12.5 10 15 69.59

Accurate Utilities Supplies Badger Meter 3,361,835.00$           1,367,650.00$       4,729,485.00$                  15.44 6,063.57$            360 9 25 20 20 89.44

Low 2,431,842.76$           Low 2,767,058.85$                  

���� ����	 
 25  1 �
���. ���� � ���	�� ���. ����

���	�� ���. ����

Page 32

ITEM #8.



 

CITY OF BAY CITY  
1901 FIFTH STREET 

AGENDA ITEM SUBMISSION FORM 
BAY CITY, TEXAS 77414 
(979) 245-2137  
FAX: (979) 323-1626  

Any item(s) to be considered for action by the City Council, must be included on this form, and 
be submitted along with any supporting documentation.  Completed Agenda Item Submission 
forms must be submitted to the City Secretary’s Office no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday of 
the week prior to the Regular Council meeting. 

Requestor Name:  Calhoun, Barry Date Submitted: 07/07/2021 
 Last, First    MM/DD/YYYY 

Requestor Type:  City Staff Meeting Date: 07/13/2021 
 Citizen/City Staff/Council Member  MM/DD/YYYY 

Position Title  Director of Public Works 
 For City Staff Only  

Agenda Location: Consent Agenda (Contract) 
 (e.g.: Consent Agenda/ Discussion Item/ Public Hearing/ Executive Session/ Presentation) 

Agenda Content: 

DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE WORK ORDER NO.4 TO THE STANDARD CONTRACT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS AND GARVER, LLC FOR PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE BAY CITY WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT UNDER THE TEXAS WATER DEVELOPMENT BOARD FUNDING CLEAN WATER SRF 
PROECTS. 

Executive Summary of Item: 

The Clean Water State Revolving Fund, authorized by the Clean Water Act, provides low-cost financial 
assistance for planning, acquisition, design, and construction of wastewater, reuse, and stormwater infrastructure.  
Eligible applicants for the CWSRF include cities, counties, districts, river authorities, designated management 
agencies, authorized Indian tribal organizations, and public and private entities proposing nonpoint source or 
estuary management projects. 
 
The City of Bay City was awarded $36,400,000 in funding from the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to 
make critical improvements to the City's wastewater systems. These improvements will include upgrades to our 
existing wastewater treatment plant, wastewater lift stations, and wastewater collection system. 
 
This agenda item is to approve additional work authorizations to the existing contract between the City of Bay City 
and Garver to assist the City with the design, bidding, and construction management services for the Bay City 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation to approve Work Order No. 4 so the City can move forward with this project. 
 
 

 

 

Page 33

ITEM #9.



 
 

   
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design Garver Project No. 20W09156 
 

EXHIBIT A  
 
 

WORK ORDER NO. 4 

 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
 

WWTP Improvements Design & Bid Phase 
 

Project No. 20W09156 
 
This WORK ORDER (“Work Order”) is made by and between the City of Bay City (hereinafter referred 
to as “Owner”) and Garver, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as “Garver”) in accordance with the provisions 
of the MASTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES executed on October 27, 2020 (the 
“Agreement”). 
 
Under this Work Order, the Owner intends to make the following improvements for Bay City WWTP 
Improvements Design.  
  
Generally, the scope of services generally includes professional services necessary for the final design, 
bid phase, and other services as noted in Appendix A for the City of Bay City (COBC) improvements to 
the Bay City Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  The work also includes incorporating the Cottonwood 
Lift Station rehabilitation design into the WWTP construction package. 
 
Garver will provide professional services as described herein.  Terms not defined herein shall have the 
meaning assigned to them in the Agreement.  
 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

1.1. Refer to APPENDIX A – SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 
2. PAYMENT 

 
2.1. The lump sum amount to be paid under this Agreement is $3,151,198.00. For informational 

purposes, a breakdown of Garver’s estimated costs is included in APPENDIX B – FEE 
SUMMARY. 

 
 
3. APPENDICES 
 

3.1. The following Appendices are attached to and made a part of this Work Order: 
Appendix A – Scope of Services 
Appendix B – Fee Summary  

 
  

Page 34

ITEM #9.



 
 

   
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design Garver Project No. 20W09156 
 

 
This Work Order may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
The effective date of this Work Order shall be the last date written below.  
 
 
 
CITY OF BAY CITY  GARVER, LLC 

By:   By:  
 Signature   Signature 

Name: Robert K. Nelson  Name: Daniel N. Olson, P.E. 
 Printed Name   Printed Name 

Title:    Mayor  Title:     Vice President 

Date:   Date:  

Attest:   Attest:  
 

  
 
 
 
  

Page 35

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 1 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

 

APPENDIX A – SCOPE OF SERVICES 

General 

 

The scope of services includes professional services necessary for the final design, bid phase, and other 
services as noted in this document for the City of Bay City (COBC) improvements to the Bay City 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). In prior agreements, Garver developed conceptual engineering 
reports and provided preliminary planning services for the work. Additionally, Garver participated in securing 
funding for the work through the Texas Water Development Board’s (TWDB) State Revolving Funds (SRF). 
The COBC is both owner and the client for this project.  

Engineering and construction for this project are intended to be financed through the TWDB SRF process. 

Construction for this work is expected to be executed under two design-bid-build construction contracts. 

The WWTP and associated facilities are included in this scope.  The future professional services contracts 

are expected to be developed for construction phase engineering and management services. 

 

The works identified under the preliminary engineering report and DIMs are to be included under the 

Facilities Work Contract. The scope of services includes the design of the following elements:   

1. Overall Facility Design Criteria and Mass Balance 

2. Facility Hydraulics 

3. Influent Pump Station 

4. Headworks 

5. Aeration Basins 

6. Blower Building 

7. Clarifiers 

8. RAS/WAS Pumping 

9. Disinfection and Contact Basin 

10. Non-Potable Water System 

11. Sludge Holding Tanks 

12. Dewatering Facility 

13. Site Civil and Yard Piping 

14. Structural Design Criteria and Foundation Design 

15. Electrical System 

16. SCADA System 

17. Administration Building 

18. Building Design Criteria 

19. Construction Sequencing/Maintenance of Plant Operations 

20. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost.  

 

The Offsite improvements at the Cottonwood Lift Station are also going to be included under the Facilities 

Work Contract. 

 

 Task I: Project Management 

 

This task is for the anticipated preliminary design phase, final design phase, and bidding phase only and is 

anticipated to be 12 months long. 

  

Garver will provide and develop project control tools including progress reports, action items log, decision 

log, design team meetings, workshops, and schedule and invoicing.  Garver shall provide professional 

services in this Task as follows:  

Page 36

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 2 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

1.1. Prepare a Project Work Plan (Garver form), a document to be used by all participants to ensure 

communication on the understanding of project goals, scope, and tasks. This project plan will serve 

all design phases. It will address:  

• Project schedule.  

• Project budget.  

• Quality Management Plan.  

• Change Management Plan.    

• Communications Plan.   

1.2. Schedule and direct regular coordination meetings with the design team to coordinate task 

assignments, action items, and to prepare for progress meetings with the Owner. Garver will maintain 

an Action Item Log/ Decision Log to monitor activity.  Coordinate with subconsultants to confirm all 

project elements are compatible and integrated. Coordinate with the Owner as needed.  

1.3. Schedule and conduct up to eight progress meetings with the Owner.  In addition to reviewing 

progress at each meeting, review project deliverable status, current schedule, outstanding action 

items, and project bottlenecks that could impact schedule, budget status, and decisions made. 

Prepare agenda and meeting materials, direct and document meetings to review progress, and 

facilitate the exchange of ideas and information.  Prepare draft meeting minutes, to include action lists 

and decision lists, within ten business days to submit to the Owner for review and approval.  Final 

minutes will be issued after receipt of review comments. The first progress meeting will include a 

project start-up meeting to confirm project scope, personnel, lines of communication, security 

protocols, change management, and schedule.   

1.4.  Prepare monthly Project Summary Reports and submit monthly invoices. The report shall contain 

the following elements:  

• Summary of work completed to date. 

• Schedule.  

• Summary of action items/decisions.  

• Upcoming activities.  

• Potential changes in scope, costs, or schedule.  

  

Task I Deliverables:  

• Meeting Agendas - Agendas to be submitted 3 days in advance of meetings (PDF 

document). 

• Draft and final meeting minutes (PDF document).  

• Monthly status reports (PDF document).  

• Monthly schedule updates (PDF document).  

• Monthly invoices (PDF document).  

 

2. TASK II: Facility Package Design Development (60%) 

2.1. During the design development (60%) phase of the project, Garver will incorporate comments from 

the 30% workshops and reviews to progress the design across all disciplines.  This submittal will 

Page 37

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 3 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

include a drawing set that builds on the 30% drawing set, specifications, and an OPCC updated based 

on the latest design data. 

2.2. Garver and the TWDB’s standard contract forms including documents from the EJCDC will be used, 

along with Garver’s standard drawing format and technical specifications. Garver will utilize the Texas 

Water Development Board (TWDB) and Engineers Joint Council Documents Committee (EJCDC) 

standard documents as a base for developing the project’s front-end documents.  

 EJCDC’s standard General Conditions shall be utilized with edits being provided by the   

 Supplemental Conditions. Standard forms, as required by the funding source, will be incorporated.  

2.3. During this task, Garver will coordinate with the Owner for potential deductive alternates.   

• Garver will include up to two (2) designed deductive alternates to provide award 

flexibility to match with available project funding.   

• Multiple design scenarios or bid packages are not included as part of the level of 

effort provided with this scope of work. 

2.4. 60% SCADA Controls Review 

Garver will conduct a review of the SCADA control deliverable. This review will focus on the 

process and instrumentation diagrams and control narratives to check they are progressing in 

alignment with review comments made at the 30% deliverable.  

2.5. Prepare up to three (3) preselection equipment packages. It is anticipated that the equipment 

packages will be for the procurement of the submersible pumps, headworks equipment, and up to 

one additional process unit. This effort includes the following:    

• Preparation of the procurement package, including preliminary drawings and 

specifications for review purposes.  

2.6. Garver will lead a 60% Design Review Workshop at the Owner’s office to solicit comments and 

feedback from the Owner. A BIM model will be developed to review constructability and operability at 

this workshop. 

2.7. Garver will prepare the 60% Design Submittal Documents.  

2.8. Garver will prepare the responses to the 60% Design review comments.  

2.9. Quality Assurance (QA): Provide QA/Quality Control (QC). 

Garver will conduct internal QA/QC of each deliverable prior to delivery to the Owner.  Garver will 

prepare for, plan, and participate in one (1) QC review meeting with the Owner. The meetings will 

be held at the 60% stage. Project documents appropriate to the submittal stage will be provided a 

minimum of 5 working days before the review meeting. Prepare a meeting memorandum 

documenting major revisions and decisions made during each of the meetings.  

 

Task II Deliverables: 

• Two (2) hard copies of the draft 60% Design Documents (including half-size 

drawings) and a PDF copy. 

 

Page 38

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 4 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

3. TASK III: Facility Package Final Design (90%) 

3.1. During the Final Design (90%) phase of the project, Garver will incorporate the comments from the 

60% reviews to complete the design. This submittal will include all drawings, specifications, and an 

OPCC updated for all final design elements. 

3.2. Garver will continue the development of (2) designed deductive alternates to provide award flexibility 

to match with available project funding.   

3.3. 90% Operability/Functionality/SCADA Controls Review: 

Garver will review the 90% design deliverable for overall functionality and operability.  This review 

will focus on the process and instrumentation diagrams and control narratives.  The review will also 

focus on the electrical control diagrams, the I/O List, and the conduit and conductor schedules to 

check for consistency throughout and to check they are progressing in alignment with review 

comments made in previous reviews. 

3.4. Garver will lead a 90% Design Review Workshop at the Owner’s office to solicit comments and 

feedback from the Owner.  A BIM model will be available to review constructability and operability at 

this workshop. 

3.5. Garver will continue the development of the project’s front-end documents.  

EJCDC’s standard General Conditions shall be utilized with edits being provided by the 

Supplemental Conditions. Standard forms, as required by the funding source, will be incorporated.  

3.6. During Final Design, an O&M workshop will be conducted to solicit input from staff on the final design 

documents.  

3.7. Garver will prepare the 90% Design Submittal Documents.  

3.8. Garver will prepare the responses to the 90% Design review comments.  

3.9. Quality Assurance (QA): Provide QA/Quality Control (QC). 

Garver will conduct internal QA/QC of each deliverable prior to delivery to the Owner.  Garver will 

prepare for, plan, and participate in one (1) QC review meeting with the Owner. The meetings will 

be held at the 90% stage. Project documents appropriate to the submittal stage will be provided a 

minimum of 5 working days before the review meeting. Prepare a meeting memorandum 

documenting major revisions and decisions made during each of the meetings.  

 

 

Task III Deliverables:  

• Two (2) hard copies of the draft 90% Design Documents (including half-sized 

drawings) and a PDF copy.  

• Required copies for Funding Agency. 

 

4. TASK IV: Facility Package Permitting Set 

4.1. A summary letter will be developed, and a sealed permitting set will be compiled to submit to TWDB 

and TCEQ for construction approval. This set will include all drawings and specifications as required 

by TWDB and TCEQ. It is anticipated that TWDB will provide the primary design reviews for the 

Page 39

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 5 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

submittals, and letters of notification will be required to notify TCEQ that TWDB is providing the review 

of the documents. Responses to TWDB/TCEQ comments will be coordinated with the Owner and 

addressed in the final documents.   

4.2. Quality Assurance (QA): Provide QA/Quality Control (QC). 

Garver will conduct internal QA/QC of each deliverable prior to delivery to the Owner.  Garver will 

prepare for, plan, and participate in one (1) QC review meeting with the Owner. The meetings will 

be held at the Facility Package Permitting Set stage. Project documents appropriate to the 

submittal stage will be provided a minimum of 5 working days before the review meeting. Prepare 

a meeting memorandum documenting major revisions and decisions made during each of the 

meetings.  

 

Task IV Deliverables: 

• Required copies for State Permitting Agency. 

 

5. TASK V: Facility Package Contract Documents (100%) 

5.1. During the Contract Documents (100%) phase of the project, Garver will incorporate the comments 

from the 90% reviews to create the biddable design documents. This submittal will include all 

drawings, specifications, and an OPCC updated for all final design elements. 

5.2. The Contract Documents will consist of drawings and specifications that set forth requirements for 

construction of the improvements and shall include proposal forms, notice to bidders, bid forms, bond 

forms, and other information as required by the Owner to competitively bid the work. 

5.3. Conduct preselection activities for the preselection equipment packages noted in Section 2.5. This 

effort includes the following:    

• Finalizing the procurement documents.  

• Prepare for and attend any pre-submittal conferences/phone discussions for 

preselected equipment.  

• Review and address questions submitted by potential equipment suppliers.   

• Prepare addenda responses, as necessary.  

• Evaluate the equipment proposals and provide a recommendation of award for the 

selected equipment. 

• Incorporate information from the preselection documents, including vendor proposals, 

into the final bid-ready construction documents. 

5.4 Quality Assurance (QA): Provide QA/Quality Control (QC).:  

 Garver will conduct internal QA/QC of each deliverable prior to delivery to the Owner.  Garver will 

prepare for, plan, and participate in one (1) QC review meeting with the Owner. The meetings will be 

held at the Facility Package Permitting Set stage. Project documents appropriate to the submittal 

stage will be provided a minimum of 5 working days before the review meeting. Prepare a meeting 

memorandum documenting major revisions and decisions made during each of the meetings.  

 

Task V Deliverables: 

• Five (5) hard copies of the 100% Design Documents (including half-size drawings) 

and a PDF copy. 

Page 40

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 6 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

 

 

6. TASK VI: Bidding Phase Services 

6.1. Bidding Assistance – Facility Work Package 

The bidding assistance period is anticipated to be a 70-day duration. During the bidding period 

phase of the project, Garver will:   

 Prepare and submit Advertisement for Bids to the City for newspaper publication as 

directed by the Owner. The owner will submit to the newspaper and will pay advertising 

costs outside of this contract.  

 Post advertisement for bids, construction contract documents, and any associated 

information to the Owner to be posted by Garver on its Website for download by 

prospective bidders.    

 Support the contract documents by preparing addenda as appropriate. 

 Prepare for and participate in one pre-bid meeting.  

 Prepare a pre-bid meeting agenda.  

 Participate and lead a construction site tour following the pre-bid meeting by interested pre-

bid meeting attendees and other interested parties.  

 Attend the bid opening.  

 Prepare bid tabulation.  

 Evaluate bids and recommend awards.  

 Attend and participate in reporting recommendation of award to Owner Council.  

 Prepare construction contracts.  

 Prepare conformed documents.   

 

 

Task VI Deliverables:  

• Draft and final bid advertisement (PDF document). 

• Draft and final pre-bid meeting agenda (PDF document). 

• Prepare addendum for the bid package (PDF document). 

• Draft and final pre-bid meeting memorandum (PDF document).   

• Draft and final bid tabulation (PDF document). 

• Draft and final Recommendation of Award. 

• Draft and final presentation for Council Award. 

• Construction contracts (5 hard copies and PDF document). 

• Conformed documents (10 half-size sets of drawings, 5 copies of specifications, and 

searchable PDF document). 

 

 

7. TASK VII: TWDB Coordination  

Garver will assist the Owner in meeting the funding program requirements of the TWDB's Clean Water 

State Revolving Fund (CWSRF).  

7.1. Garver will perform the following tasks:  

 Provide design deliverables to the TWDB at each phase. 

Page 41

ITEM #9.



 

Appendix A - Scope of Services 7 of 7 20W09156 
Bay City WWTP Improvements Design 

• Deliver report, plans, and/or specifications at each design deliverable to the Owner 

for submittal to the TWDB. 

 Coordinate bid documents with the TWDB to provide program compliance. 

• Coordinate with the TWDB to address comments regarding the design deliverables. 

 Coordinate with the TWDB regarding questions and comments for bidding documents and 

bidding requirements.  

• Garver will be responsible for all other TWDB coordination, forms, and 

reimbursement requests.   

 

8. Work Not Included/Extra Work 

 

The following items are not included under this agreement but will be considered as Extra Work. Extra Work 

will be as directed by the Owner in writing for an additional fee as agreed upon by the Owner and the 

Engineer. 

1. Environmental Information Document.  

2. Asbestos investigation or remediation plan. 

3. Construction Phase Engineering Services.  

4. Construction Phase On-site Construction Management Services.  

5. Construction materials testing.  

6. Geotechnical services.   

7. The survey, property boundary survey, easement research services, or bathymetric survey.   

8. Easement coordination of easement documents.  

9. SSES, I&I analysis, and/or sewer system survey.   

10. Design of improvements off-site.  

11. Utility relocation coordination or design.  

12. Hydraulics and hydrology for floodway No-Rise Certification and Individual 404 permit.  

13. Redesign for the Owner’s convenience or due to changed conditions after previous alternate 

direction and/or approval.  

14. Preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).    

15. Environmental Handling and Documentation beyond those previously identified, including 

wetlands identification or mitigation plans or other work related to environmentally or 

historically (culturally) significant items.  

16. Perform work on an application for a new discharge permit or a major permit amendment.    

17. Water quality modeling.   

18. Prepare to serve or serve as an expert witness on behalf of the Owner.  

19. Provide technical or procedural support if the proposed permit amendment is protested. 

20. Sludge Management Plan. 

21. Warranty Assistance. 

22. Water Reuse Master Plan. 

23. Utility Rate Study. 

24. Water Conservation Plan.  

25. Jar Testing Services. 

26. Sampling Services. 

27. Additional meetings beyond those identified in the scope. 

28. Software licenses. 

Page 42

ITEM #9.



Proposed Project Schedule

City of Bay City

Bay City WWTP

Design and Bid Phase Services

Proposed Milestone Schedule

Milestone Milestone / Deliverable Duration
1,2

Anticipated Delivery
3

1 Project NTP -- Monday, July 19, 2021

2 60% Design Submittal Within 70 working days of NTP Thursday, October 28, 2021

3 90% Design Submittal
Within 80 working days from receipt of written 

comments on 60% review submittal
Wednesday, March 9, 2022

4 Regulatory Review Submittal
Within 10 working days from submittal of 90% review 

submittal
Wednesday, April 20, 2022

5
100% Bid-set Documents (Front End 

Documents, Drawings, Specification, Details)

Within 20 working days from receipt of Regulatory 

Review Comments from TWDB and Receipt of City/OR 

Comments on 90% submittal

Wednesday, June 1, 2022

Tuesday, June 29, 2021

3. Anticipated delivery date shown is based on durations noted. Reference detailed, critical path schedule attached. It is noted that delays in preceding milestones (such as 

extended client review periods or delays in Regulatory Reviews) could delay delivery of subsequent submittals.

1. Duration shown is intended to be the contractual delivery date.

2. Working days do not include weekends (Saturday/Sunday) and standard Garver Holidays/observed holidays (New Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 

Thanksgiving Day, Thanksgiving Friday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day).

Page 43

ITEM #9.



Appendix B

City of Bay City
WWTP Improvements Design

FEE SUMMARY

Basic Services Section Estimated Fees

TASK I - Project Management  $            245,722.00 
TASK II - Facility Package Design Development - 60%  $         1,127,378.00 
TASK III - Facility Package Final Design - 90%  $         1,117,018.00 
TASK IV - Facility Package Permitting Set  $              83,752.00 
TASK V - Facility Package Contract Documents - 100%  $            389,208.00 
TASK VI - Facility Package Bid Phase Services  $            143,556.00 
TASK VII - TWDB Coordination 44,564.00$               
Subtotal for Basic Services Section 3,151,198.00$          

Page 1 of 1
Page 44

ITEM #9.



Item

 No.

Description of Item with Unit Bid Price in Written

Words. Unit

Approx. 

Quantity Unit Amount Total Price

Metal Beam Guard Fence (Timber Post)

@

L.F. 2,420 $

Per Linear Foot

Guardrail End Treatment

@

EA. 4 $

Per Each

36-inch HDPE, ASTM C-76, all depths, (including

bedding and backfill), complete in place. 

@

L.F. 20 $

Per Linear Foot

4-inch (4") thick reinforced concrete slope paving,

including weep holes, rebar and expansion joints.

See details on plans, complete in place.

@

C.Y. 1,530 $

Per Cubic Yard

Storm Sewer

17.

18.

16.

15.

A-8

Page 45

ITEM #10.

MBB
Highlight
C.Y. 1,530 $Per Cubic YardStorm Sewer17.



GC-3 

 GENERAL CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

 

 1.  DEFINITIONS OF TERMS 

 

 

1.01 OWNER, CONTRACTOR AND ENGINEER 

 

The OWNER, the CONTRACTOR and the ENGINEER are those persons or organizations identified as such in the Agreement 

and are referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and masculine in gender.  The term 

ENGINEER means the ENGINEER or his duly authorized representative. The ENGINEER shall be understood to be the 

ENGINEER of the OWNER, and nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual or agency 

relationship between the ENGINEER and the CONTRACTOR. 

 

1.02 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

The Contract Documents shall consist of the Notice to Bidders (Advertisement), Special Conditions (Instructions to 

Bidders), Proposal, signed Agreement, Performance and Payment Bonds (when required), Special Bonds (when 

required), General Conditions of the Agreement, Special Conditions of the Contract, Technical Specifications, 

Construction Drawings, and all modifications thereof incorporated in any of the documents before the execution of the 

agreement. 

 

The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by any one shall be as binding as if called for by all.  

In case of conflict between any of the Contract Documents, priority of interpretation shall be in the following order:  

Signed Agreement, Performance and Payment Bonds, Special Bonds (if any), Proposal, Special Conditions of the 

Contract,  Notice to Bidders, Technical Specifications, Construction Drawings, and General Conditions of Agreement. 

 

1.03 SUB-CONTRACTOR 

 

The term Sub-Contractor, as employed herein, includes only those having a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR and it 

includes one who furnishes material worked to a special design according to the construction drawings or specifications 

of this work, but does not include one who merely furnishes material not so worked. 

 

1.04 WRITTEN NOTICE 

 

Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the 

firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered mail to the last 

business address known to him who gives the notice. 

 

1.05 WORK 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall provide and pay for all materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, tools, superintendence, labor, 

services, insurance, and all water, light, power, fuel, transportation and other facilities necessary for the execution and 

completion of the work covered by the contract documents.  Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and 

both workmanship and materials shall be of a good quality.  The CONTRACTOR shall, if required, furnish satisfactory 

evidence as to the kind and quality of materials.  Materials or work described in words which so applied have a well 

known technical or trade meaning shall be held to refer to such recognized standards. 

 

1.06 EXTRA WORK 

 

The term "Extra Work" as used in this contract shall be understood to mean and include all work that may be required by 

the ENGINEER or OWNER to be done by the CONTRACTOR to accomplish any change, alteration or addition to the work 

shown upon the construction drawings, or reasonably implied by the specifications, and not covered by the 

CONTRACTOR'S Proposal, except as provided under "Changes and Alterations", herein. 

 

1.07 WORKING DAY 

 

A "Working Day" is defined as any day not including Saturdays, Sundays or any legal holidays, in which weather or other 

conditions not under the control of the CONTRACTOR, will permit construction of the principal units of the work for a 

period of not less than seven (7) hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 

 

1.08 CALENDAR DAY 

 

"Calendar Day" is any day of the week or month, no days being excepted.  No allowance will be made for inclement 

weather if the CONTRACTOR was able or would have been able to prosecute the principal units of work for a period of 

not less than seven (7) hours between 7:00 a. m. and 6:00 p. m. 

  

Page 46

ITEM #10.

MBB
Highlight
The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is called for by any one shall be as binding as if called for by all.  In case of conflict between any of the Contract Documents, priority of interpretation shall be in the following order:  Signed Agreement, Performance and Payment Bonds, Special Bonds (if any), Proposal, Special Conditions of the Contract,  Notice to Bidders, Technical Specifications, Construction Drawings, and General Conditions of Agreement. 



Item 491       FOR PROJECTS INITIATED 
Page -2-       AFTER SEPTEMBER 1, 2017 
        REVISION 5 

 

from fabric to the edge of concrete, and no wires projecting to last 
member parallel to the edge of concrete. 

 
The reinforcing steel shall be supported throughout the placing of the 
slope paving to maintain its position approximately equidistant from top 
and bottom surface of the concrete. 

  
The minimum thickness of the reinforced concrete slope paving shall be 5 
inches. 

 
After the concrete has been placed, compacted and shaped to conform to 
the dimensions shown on the plans, and after it has cured sufficiently to 
avoid slumping, the concrete shall be finished with a wooden float to 
secure a reasonably smooth finish. 

 
The concrete shall be cured in accordance with the Item 526 "Membrane 
Curing". 

 
Weep holes shall be installed in the bottoms and walls of the low flow 
section and in the slope paving at the locations and spacing and in 
accordance with the details shown on the plans. 

 
491.4 Measurement.  Concrete slope protection shall be measured by the 

square yard of surface area, complete in place.  All edge beams and/or 
toe walls, as well as weep holes, shall be incidental to the reinforced 
concrete slope paving. 

 
491.5 Payment.  Concrete slope protection shall be paid for at the contract unit 

price, measured as provided above.  Price shall be full compensation for 
furnishing and placing all materials, including expansion joint material, 
joint sealant and reinforcing steel, surface finishing, and curing. 

 
 

There are line code(s), description(s), and unit(s) for this Item. 
 

NOTE: This Item requires other Standard Specifications 
 

Item 421 “Structural Concrete” 
Item 526 “Membrane Curing” 

 
END OF ITEM 491 

Page 47

ITEM #10.

MBB
Highlight
Measurement.  Concrete slope protection shall be measured by the square yard of surface area, complete in place.  All edge beams and/or toe walls, as well as weep holes, shall be incidental to the reinforced concrete slope paving. 



 J O N E S   &   C A R T E R , INC.

OWNER:  City of Bay City

BID NO. 1 BID NO. 2 BID NO. 3 BID NO. 4

PROJECT: Construction of Nile Valley Road

DATE:  October 23, 2020 TIME:  10:00 A.M.

ENGINEER:  Jones & Carter, Inc.

JOB NO. :  R0017-0053-00

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PLAN UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL

NO. QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

BASE BID

1 Move-in and start-up, including performance and payment 

bonds for 100 percent (100%) of the contract amount.  

L.S. 1.0 $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $461,610.00 $461,610.00 $215,000.00 $215,000.00 $207,000.00 $207,000.00

SITE WORK

2 Site preparation of right-of-way, including stripping of top 

six inches (6") depth of topsoil and removal of vegetation, 

as directed by Engineer.

STA. 142.0 $1,400.00 $198,800.00 $1,901.00 $269,942.00 $285.00 $40,470.00 $290.00 $41,180.00

3 Excavation of roadway to final elevations and grades, in 

accordance with plans, as directed by Engineer.

C.Y. 1,041.0 $15.00 $15,615.00 $8.00 $8,328.00 $17.15 $17,853.15 * $17.00 $17,697.00

4 Embankment C.Y. 7,289.0 $15.00 $109,335.00 $22.00 $160,358.00 $27.73 $202,123.97 $24.00 $174,936.00

ROADWAY

5 8-inch (8") lime subgrade, complete in place. S.Y. 62,620.0 $3.00 $187,860.00 $3.25 $203,515.00 $3.75 $234,825.00 $2.25 $140,895.00

6 Lime (40 lbs/SY). Tons 1,253.0 $200.00 $250,600.00 $254.00 $318,262.00 $157.20 $196,971.60 $177.00 $221,781.00

7 8" Flex Base, Type A, Grade 1-2, Final Position, Complete 

in Place.

C.Y. 13,098.0 $97.00 $1,270,506.00 $101.00 $1,322,898.00 $86.96 $1,139,002.08 $87.25 $1,142,800.50

8 1.5" Ty "C" Asphalt, PG 76-22, Complete in Place. Tons 4,775.0 $115.00 $549,125.00 $123.00 $587,325.00 $95.37 $455,391.75 $106.00 $506,150.00

9 1.5" Ty "D" Asphalt, PG 76-22, Complete in Place. Tons 5,171.0 $115.00 $594,665.00 $124.00 $641,204.00 $98.78 $510,791.38 $108.00 $558,468.00

10 Concrete Approach Slab (Including Armor Joint), Complete 

in Place.

S.Y. 178.0 $550.00 $97,900.00 $186.00 $33,108.00 $297.36 $52,930.08 $218.00 $38,804.00

11 Driveways (ACP) S.Y. 687.0 $45.00 $30,915.00 $32.00 $21,984.00 $38.63 $26,538.81 $35.00 $24,045.00

12 Driveways (Surface Treatment) S.Y. 576.0 $35.00 $20,160.00 $36.00 $20,736.00 $31.80 $18,316.80 $16.50 $9,504.00

13 TX5 Geogrid, Complete in Place. S.Y. 62,620.0 $4.00 $250,480.00 $2.00 $125,240.00 $3.26 $204,141.20 $3.25 $203,515.00

14 Prime Coat, Complete in Place. Gal 18,786.0 $4.00 $75,144.00 $4.00 $75,144.00 $3.86 $72,513.96 $4.00 $75,144.00

15 4" Concrete Mow Strip, Complete in Place. C.Y. 114.0 $675.00 $76,950.00 $317.00 $36,138.00 $1,229.82 $140,199.48 $1,125.00 $128,250.00

16 Metal Beam Guard Fence (Timber Post) L.F. 2,420.0 $23.00 $55,660.00 $28.00 $67,760.00 $22.31 $53,990.20 $25.00 $60,500.00

17 Guardrail End Treatment EA. 4.0 $2,800.00 $11,200.00 $3,348.00 $13,392.00 $2,808.75 $11,235.00 $3,100.00 $12,400.00

STORM SEWER

18 36-inch HDPE, ASTM C-76, all depths, (including bedding 

and backfill), complete in place. 

L.F. 20.0 $300.00 $6,000.00 $100.00 $2,000.00 $183.85 $3,677.00 $207.00 $4,140.00

19 4-inch (4") thick reinforced concrete slope paving, 

including weep holes, rebar and expansion joints. See 

details on plans, complete in place.

C.Y. 1,530.0 $750.00 $1,147,500.00 $709.00 $1,084,770.00 $567.03 $867,555.90 $419.00 $641,070.00

20 Rip-rap eighty pounds (80 lbs.) to one hundred and fifty 

pounds (150 lbs.) evenly graded broken concrete with no 

exposed steel, minimum six-inch (6") blocks, no block 

length shall exceed 3 times the width or thickness, 

minimum eighteen-inch (18") mat thickness with woven 

filter fabric mat, to be covered with 6" of onsite topsoil, 

according to specifications, complete in place.

C.Y. 22.0 $160.00 $3,520.00 $231.00 $5,082.00 $285.00 $6,270.00 $200.00 $4,400.00

21 Concrete headwall per TxDOT CH-PW-0 standard, 

complete in place.

EA. 2.0 $27,000.00 $54,000.00 $22,166.00 $44,332.00 $40,896.00 $81,792.00 $14,500.00 $29,000.00

STORM WATER QUALITY

22 Placement of reinforced filter fabric fence, along back of 

curb, and as directed by engineer (inc. installation, 

maintenance and removal).

L.F. 2,644.0 $5.00 $13,220.00 $2.00 $5,288.00 $3.98 $10,523.12 $4.00 $10,576.00

23 Inlet protection (sand bags, hay bales, or approved equal) 

as per Pollution Prevention Site Plan (including 

installation, maintenance, and removal after 

construction).  

L.F. 138.0 $15.00 $2,070.00 $13.00 $1,794.00 $13.55 $1,869.90 $10.00 $1,380.00

P.O. Box 1338

Stafford, Texas 77497

(281) 499-1551

Durwood Greene Construction Co. TLC Construction Contract Services

11714 Charles Rd.

Houston, Texas 77041

(281) 357-4069

Rexco Inc

1104 Mildred Dr.

Port Lavaca, Texas 77979

(361) 552-5301

Lester Contracting, Inc.

P.O. Box 986

Port Lavaca, Texas 77979

(361) 552-3024

P A G E  1

Page 48

ITEM #10.

MBB
Highlight
19 4-inch (4") thick reinforced concrete slope paving, including weep holes, rebar and expansion joints. See details on plans, complete in place.C.Y. 1,530.0



 J O N E S   &   C A R T E R , INC.

OWNER:  City of Bay City

BID NO. 1 BID NO. 2 BID NO. 3 BID NO. 4

PROJECT: Construction of Nile Valley Road

DATE:  October 23, 2020 TIME:  10:00 A.M.

ENGINEER:  Jones & Carter, Inc.

JOB NO. :  R0017-0053-00

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT PLAN UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL

NO. QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT

P.O. Box 1338

Stafford, Texas 77497

(281) 499-1551

Durwood Greene Construction Co. TLC Construction Contract Services

11714 Charles Rd.

Houston, Texas 77041

(281) 357-4069

Rexco Inc

1104 Mildred Dr.

Port Lavaca, Texas 77979

(361) 552-5301

Lester Contracting, Inc.

P.O. Box 986

Port Lavaca, Texas 77979

(361) 552-3024

24 Rock filter dam as per Pollution Prevention Plan (including 

installation, maintenance, and removal).

L.F. 50.0 $100.00 $5,000.00 $88.00 $4,400.00 $67.00 $3,350.00 $30.00 $1,500.00

25 Broadcast seed within fill areas using a mixture of seeds, 

fertilizing, watering as specified in Standard specifications.

AC. 4.9 $650.00 $3,185.00 $939.00 $4,601.10 * $1,682.50 $8,244.25 $1,200.00 $5,880.00

REMOVAL ITEMS

26 Remove existing 24" RCP and dispose of offsite in a 

suitable manner.

L.F. 595.0 $15.00 $8,925.00 $17.00 $10,115.00 $34.00 $20,230.00 $18.00 $10,710.00

27 Remove existing grate inlet and dispose of offsite in a 

suitable manner.

EA. 7.0 $600.00 $4,200.00 $611.00 $4,277.00 $1,400.00 $9,800.00 $420.00 $2,940.00

28 Remove existing metal beam guard fence and dispose of 

offsite in a suitable manner.

L.F. 2,008.0 $8.00 $16,064.00 $2.00 $4,016.00 $1.31 $2,630.48 $1.50 $3,012.00

29 Remove existing terminal anchor section and dispose of 

offsite in a suitable manner.

EA. 4.0 $250.00 $1,000.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 $294.00 $1,176.00 $330.00 $1,320.00

30 Remove existing asphalt and stabilized base and dispose of 

offsite in a suitable manner.

S.Y. 54,749.0 $7.00 $383,243.00 $7.00 $383,243.00 $18.31 $1,002,454.19 $4.00 $218,996.00

31 Mill existing 1.5" asphalt pavment. S.Y. 5,875.0 $5.00 $29,375.00 $1.00 $5,875.00 $2.42 $14,217.50 $3.80 $22,325.00

32 Remove existing concrete (bridge approach slab). S.Y. 178.0 $50.00 $8,900.00 $8.00 $1,424.00 $41.00 $7,298.00 $29.00 $5,162.00

33 Remove existing concrete slope paving and dispose of 

offsite in a suitable manner.

S.Y. 407.0 $30.00 $12,210.00 $6.00 $2,442.00 $20.00 $8,140.00 $13.00 $5,291.00

34 Remove existing signs and dispose of offsite in a suitable 

manner.

EA. 4.0 $100.00 $400.00 $75.00 $300.00 $63.00 $252.00 $70.00 $280.00

SIGNING & PAVEMENT MARKINGS

35 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (White) (4") 

(Solid) (90 Mil), including surface preparation

L.F. 28,530.0 $0.40 $11,412.00 $1.00 $28,530.00 $0.42 $11,982.60 $0.42 $11,982.60

36 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (White) (8") 

(Solid) (90 Mil), including surface preparation

L.F. 144.0 $3.00 $432.00 $2.00 $288.00 $1.58 $227.52 $1.20 $172.80

37 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (White) (24") 

(Solid) (90 Mil), including surface preparation

L.F. 18.0 $10.00 $180.00 $15.00 $270.00 $12.60 $226.80 $7.00 $126.00

38 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (White) (Arrow) 

(90 Mil), including surface preparation

EA. 1.0 $200.00 $200.00 $181.00 $181.00 $152.25 $152.25 $200.00 $200.00

39 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (White) (Word) 

(90 Mil), including surface preparation

EA. 1.0 $220.00 $220.00 $181.00 $181.00 $152.25 $152.25 $210.00 $210.00

40 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I (Yellow) (4") 

(Solid) (90 Mil), including surface preparation

L.F. 28,052.0 $0.40 $11,220.80 $1.00 $28,052.00 $0.42 $11,781.84 $0.40 $11,220.80

41 Reflectorized pavement markings Type I-C EA. 8.0 $5.00 $40.00 $5.00 $40.00 $4.20 $33.60 $5.00 $40.00

42 Reflectorized pavement markings Type II-A-A EA. 702.0 $5.00 $3,510.00 $5.00 $3,510.00 $4.20 $2,948.40 $5.00 $3,510.00

43 Aluminum sign (including support) EA. 19.0 $800.00 $15,200.00 $407.00 $7,733.00 $341.25 $6,483.75 $350.00 $6,650.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL

44 Barricades, Signs and Traffic Handling MO. 6.0 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,422.00 $26,532.00 $1,610.00 $9,660.00 $4,000.00 $24,000.00

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

45 Trench safety system for all waterline and storm sewer 

pipe, 0-10'.

L.F. 20.0 $10.00 $200.00 $1.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $20,000.00 $50.00 $1,000.00

46 25' by 75' Stabilized Construction Access, installed, 

maintained, and removed.

EA. 3.0 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,693.00 $14,079.00 $2,887.50 $8,662.50 $3,300.00 $9,900.00

47 Concrete truck washout, installed, maintained, and 

removed.

EA. 3.0 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $853.00 $2,559.00 $157.50 $472.50 $800.00 $2,400.00

48 Notice of Intent EA. 2.0 $325.00 $650.00 $3,379.00 $6,758.00 $315.00 $630.00 $1,150.00 $2,300.00

49 Utility construction staking to be performed by Jones & 

Carter, Inc.  Staking to be performed one time only.  All 

additional staking is at the expense of the contractor.  

L.S. 1.0 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00

TOTAL BASE BID $5,973,991.80 $6,073,036.10 $5,737,188.81 $4,626,763.70

* Denotes Calculation Error by Contractor

P A G E  2

Page 49

ITEM #10.



CONCRETE SLOPE PAVING)

TOE WALLS (INCIDENTAL TO

4" CONCRETE SLOPE PAVING

NILE VALLEY ROAD

 

  

CONCRETE SLOPE

PAVING EXHIBIT

1

SCALE: NTS

9
:
0
4
:
0
8
 

A
M

7
/
9
/
2
0
2
1

$
F
I

L
E
$

F
I

L
E
:

D
A

T
E
:

Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439

�Bellaire, Texas 77401� 713.777.53376330 West Loop South, Suite 150 

SHEET OF

DRAWN

BTG

DESIGNED

BTG

CHECKED

MBB

APPROVED

MBB

STATE

TEXAS HARRIS

SHEET

NO.

COUNTY

NILE VALLEY ROAD

CITY OF BAY CITY

Page 50

ITEM #10.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	Workshop 06/22/21
	City Council Workshop - Capital Planning Minutes 210622

	ITEM #2.	AP Consent 3rd Quarter
	AP Consent 3rd Qtr 2021

	ITEM #3.	TIRZ #1 Expenditures
	TIRZ1 Expend

	ITEM #4.	I See You
	ITEM #5.	BCCDC Budget Amendment
	Executive Summary- BCCDC Budget Amendments
	BCCDC Budget Amendment #2 Detail_3rd Quarter

	ITEM #6.	Budget Amendments-City 3rd Qtr
	Executive Summary- Budget Amendments_City
	Budget Amendment #3 Detail
	Budget Amendment #3 Ord FY 2021

	ITEM #7.	Audit Services 2021
	Executive Summary- Audit Services
	Harrison Waldrop Uherek Engagement Agreement 2021

	ITEM #8.	AMI Meters
	Item Submission - TWDB AMI Meters - Award Bid
	Bid Tabulation
	Bid Scoring Final_2021-06-15

	ITEM #9.	Garver WWTP
	Item Submission - Garver Engr Contract WWTP Design &amp; Bid
	WO-4_Bay City WWTP Improvements_Design &amp; Bid Phase

	ITEM #10.	Nile Valley Overages
	Nile Valley Pay App 6 Info
	Slope_Paving_Exhibit

	ITEM #11.	Legal
	Bottom

